
MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING  

EMS Training Room, Southwest Health System 
WEDNESDAY, August 14, 2024 

Meeting Starts: 6:00pm 
 

 

Mission Statement 
It is the mission of the Montezuma County Hospital District to assure high quality healthcare facilities for the 
community, Montezuma County, and the surrounding areas and to provide support and assistance in a manner which 
is consistent with a high standard of healthcare.  

 

AGENDA 

 
 
6:00pm Call to Order       - 5 minutes 
 
Roll Call  
  
Changes or additions to agenda 
 
Public Comment: Public is invited to attend and provide comments please RSVP bjabour@swhealth.org 
as seating is limited.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA (Enclosure 1)     - 5 minutes 

• July 10, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
• Payment of Bills 

 
REPORTS and ACTION ITEMS 
SHS Report (Enclosure 2) 

• SHS Board Report      - 5 minutes 
• Operations Report       - 10 minutes 
• Finance Report       - 10 minutes 

 
Financial Report, Rob Dobry, Scty/Treas (Enclosure 3)  - 15 minutes 

• July Financials  
• 2023 Audit 
• Accountant RFP Discussion 
• montezumahospitalCO.gov 

  
Capital Infrastructure Committee Report    - 15 minutes  
 
Foundation Update, Gala Pock     - 5 minutes  
 
Attorney Report  
 
Executive Session, if needed. 
 
Adjournment 



Mission Statement 
It is the mission of the Montezuma County Hospital District to assure high quality healthcare facilities for the 

community, Montezuma County, and the surrounding areas and to provide support and assistance in a 
manner which is consistent with a high standard of healthcare. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
July 10, 2024, MCHD Regular Board Meeting 

Page 1 of 3 

Montezuma County Hospital District Regular Board Meeting 
  EMS Training Room  

July 10, 2024 
 
Present:                         Also Present:         
Brandon Johnson, Chairperson Shirley Jones, SHS Chair  Recorded by:  
Bill Thompson, Vice-Chairperson Rob Owens, SHS Plant Operations Dir  Bridgett Jabour, Secretary  
Robert Dobry, Secretary/Treasurer Chuck Krupa, IS Dir / CIO  
Gala Pock, Director  Peter Rehn, Owner’s Rep (CAPM) via Teams Excused/Absent: 
Sean Flaherty, Director  Adam Conley, SHS CFO Kelly McCabe, MCHD Attorney 
Bob Ower, Director  Orly Lucero, Director (via Teams) 
  Joe Theine, SHS CEO (via Teams) 
Counsel:   
Keenen Lovett, MCHD Attorney    

 
Agenda Item/Topic Findings and Discussions Conclusions, Recommendations, 

Actions, and/or Motions 
Follow-up 
Responsible 
Party 

Call to order MCHD Chair Brandon Johnson called the meeting to order at 
6:00 pm.  
 

  

Roll Call Roll was called for the Board by Robert Dobry, Scty/Treas for 
MCHD Board. 

 
 

 

Public Comment None.    
Changes to Agenda None.   
Consent Agenda 
 

June 12, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Payment of Bills  
 

It was moved and seconded to approve 
the consent agenda as presented.  
Motion: Robert Dobry 
Second: Sean Flagherty 
Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 

REPORTS and 
ACTION ITEMS 

   

SHS Board Report 
 
 

Shirley Jones, SHS Board Chair gave a Board Report: Ms. 
Jones advised that the board is working on board development 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
July 10, 2024, MCHD Regular Board Meeting 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
SHS Operating 
Report – CIO 
Chuck Krupa 
 
 
SHS May 2024 
Financial Report – 
CFO Adam Conley 

education and governance as well as planning a strategic 
planning meeting this summer. 
 
CIO Chuck Krupa reviewed the Operating Report slideshow in 
addition to enclosed report, including updates on recruitment 
of providers, RN retention levels, employee of the month, 
grant funding status, capital expenditures and other markers. 
 
SHS CFO Adam Conley reviewed the May Financials.  
Utilization was down for May in most areas, except for 
Diagnostic Imaging and a few other areas.  
EBIDA For May $447k; Year to Date EBIDA is $2.609k. 
Expenses are below budget. Days Cash on Hand with all 
reserves is 84 days for May. Days cash includes prefunding for 
roofing project which has not been paid out as we await final 
invoicing from Centimark. 
  
Mr. Conley stated days unbilled has fully normalized since the 
Change Healthcare cyberattack. Review of capital 
infrastructure funds.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Financial Report –  
Robert Dobry, 
Scty/Treasurer 
 

Sales Tax Income received in June is not fully reported, this 
info will be available later in the week. Numbers continue to 
exceed prior year of the same month.  
Mr. Dobry advised that software to meet new accessibility for 
websites has been downloaded. Mr. Dobry will work with Ms. 
Jabour to see how it works and how the agendas need to be 
amended to meet the requirements.  

  

Owner’s 
Representative 
Report – Peter 
Rehn, CAPM 

Owner’s Representative Peter Rehn advised that the roofing 
work is complete. The only remaining task is for City Permit 
approval from Sean Canada, which is scheduled for next week. 
Mr. Rehn thanked the board and expressed interest in bidding 
future work should an owner’s rep be needed.  

The board thanked Mr. Rehn for his 
work on the project.  

 



 
July 10, 2024, MCHD Regular Board Meeting 

Page 3 of 3 

 
___________________________________      ________________________________ 
Bridgett Jabour, MCHD Secretary       Robert Dobry, Secretary/Treasurer 

Cap Infrastructure 
Committee Meeting 
Update – Mr. 
Flaherty 
 

MCHD Director Sean Flaherty advised that discussion 
continues on Microgrid. Work complete on roofing, just 
awaiting City of Cortez finalized approval of completed work. 
The Committee walked the roof at their meeting this morning.  
 

 
 

 

Foundation Report 
– Gala Pock 

Nothing new to report.    

Attorney Report Nothing to report.   
Executive Session There was no board action to adjourn to executive session.    
Adjournment Next meeting to take place August 14, 2024. 

 
 

The Board adjourned the meeting at 
7:18 pm. 
MOTION: Robert Dobry 
SECOND: Sean Flaherty 
Motion carried.  
 

 





Mission Statement 
It is the mission of the Montezuma County Hospital District to assure high quality healthcare facilities for the 

community, Montezuma County, and the surrounding areas and to provide support and assistance in a 
manner which is consistent with a high standard of healthcare. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SHS Report                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CEO Report 

July 2024 
 
 

   

 

Area Update 

Physician | 
Provider 
Recruiting 

 
Updated 07/24/2024 
 

Upcoming On-Site Interviews: 

• FMOB Candidates, Three Scheduled 

Completed On-Site Interviews: 

• FMOB Candidates, One Completed 

Offers Accepted Since Last Meeting: 

• None 

 

Operations 
Updates 

• Gallup Q12 Small Book Club to Explore Leadership / Engagement Concepts being applied to 

engagement survey summer 2024. Second book started. 

• RN vacancies remain lower, 9 current openings. Highest was 24.  

CEO 
Community 
Engagement 

• Friends of the Hospital Meeting 

• Tom Buffaloe, Community Member  

• Drew Sanders, City of Cortez 

• High School Summer Intern & Family Luncheon 

• Montezuma County Board of County Commissioners Quarterly Update 

Other 
Meetings 

• Western Healthcare Alliance Annual Summit, Grand Junction 

• HCA VP Rural Outreach 

• HCA President, Continental Division 

• Addison Wood, DO, Spine Surgeon Montrose 

• Boettcher Foundation Grant Manager 

• Gates Family Foundation Grant Manager 

• Colorado Department of Public Health & Environment | Critical Access Licensure Stakeholder 
Process 
 



CEO Report 

July 2024 
 
 

   

 

Area Update 

Other 
Notable 
Items 

• Attended Department Meetings 
o Provider Leadership Council Family Picnic 

• Appointed by Governor Polis to the Colorado Option Advisory Board.  One of two individuals 

appointed who represent hospital interests in the State of Colorado. 

• Co-Presented with Caitlin DeCrow at the Western Healthcare Alliance Annual Summit 

o “Change Management: A mini case study on leading change in a critical access hospital” 

 



High Low

Current Budget # Var % Var Prior % Var Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Budget # Var % Var Prior Year % Var
Admissions, Total 406 533 (127) (23.8%) 492 (17.5%) 69 54 69 87 54 73 88 (15) (17.0%) 76 (3.9%)

  Acute 368 495 (127) (25.7%) 462 (20.3%) 63 49 64 79 48 65 81 (16) (19.8%) 71 (8.5%)

  SNF 38 38 0 0.0% 30 26.7% 6 5 5 8 6 8 7 1 14.3% 5 60.0%

Patient Days, Total 1,993 2,064 (71) (3.4%) 1,889 5.5% 373 351 288 414 230 337 323 14 4.3% 291 15.8%

  Acute 1,471 1,730 (259) (15.0%) 1,594 (7.7%) 290 240 236 297 142 266 263 3 1.1% 243 9.5%

  SNF 522 334 188 56.3% 295 76.9% 83 111 52 117 88 71 60 11 18.3% 48 47.9%

ALOS, Total 4.91 3.87 (1.04) (26.8%) 3.84 (27.9%) 5.41 6.50 4.17 4.76 4.26 4.62 3.67 (0.95) (25.8%) 3.83 (20.6%)

  Acute 4.00 3.49 (0.50) (14.4%) 3.45 (15.9%) 4.60 4.90 3.69 3.76 2.96 4.09 3.25 (0.85) (26.0%) 3.42 (19.6%)

  SNF 13.74 8.79 (4.95) (56.3%) 9.83 (39.7%) 13.83 22.20 10.40 14.63 14.67 8.88 8.57 (0.30) (3.5%) 9.60 7.6%

Adj Admissions 2,788 3,590 (802) (22.3%) 3,375 (17.4%) 416 343 467 538 559 512 612 (99) (16.2%) 568 (9.9%)
Adj Patient Days 13,687 13,903 (216) (1.6%) 12,957 5.6% 2,250 2,231 1,949 2,561 2,382 2,366 2,245 121 5.4% 2,177 8.7%

Case Mix Index, Total 1.2613 1.2576 0.0037 0.3% 1.1831 6.6% 1.2420 1.3163 1.2500 1.2506 1.2180 1.2909 1.2576 0.0333 2.6% 1.1349 13.7%

Case Mix Index, Medicare 1.3468 1.2017 0.1451 12.1% 1.1648 15.6% 1.3029 1.5277 1.0463 1.5725 1.1395 1.4920 1.2017 0.2903 24.2% 1.1193 33.3%

Surgeries, Total 368 496 (128) (25.8%) 500 (26.4%) 58 55 59 69 62 65 82 (17) (20.7%) 84 (22.6%)

  Inpatient 89 126 (37) (29.4%) 125 (28.8%) 16 13 10 22 13 15 22 (7) (31.8%) 25 (40.0%)

  Outpatient 279 370 (91) (24.6%) 375 (25.6%) 42 42 49 47 49 50 60 (10) (16.7%) 59 (15.3%)

Total GI Procedures 466 526 (60) (11.4%) 538 (13.4%) 74 100 58 109 49 76 97 (21) (21.6%) 92 (17.4%)

Births 57 61 (4) (6.6%) 77 (26.0%) 6 3 11 13 13 11 13 (2) (15.4%) 14 (21.4%)

Emergency Visits 6,731 6,829 (98) (1.4%) 6,656 1.1% 1,096 1,049 1,102 1,111 1,213 1,160 1,221 (61) (5.0%) 1,171 (0.9%)

ER Conversion Rate 5.1% 6.0% -- (0.8%) 6.2% (1.1%) 5.7% 5.3% 5.2% 5.6% 4.3% 4.7% 6.0% -- (1.3%) 5.6% (0.9%)
Observation Days 230 298 (68) (22.8%) 282 (18.4%) 37 37 30 38 52 36 50 (14) (28.0%) 34 5.9%

Outpatient Diagnostic Visits 21,134 21,229 (95) (0.4%) 21,387 (1.2%) 3,636 3,553 3,235 3,750 3,568 3,392 3,361 31 0.9% 3,476 (2.4%)

Provider Based or Specialty Clinic Visits 4,514 5,184 (670) (12.9%) 6,915 (34.7%) 879 728 596 864 635 812 832 (20) (2.4%) 1,013 (19.8%)

Rural Health Clinic Visits 21,077 23,111 (2,034) (8.8%) 20,957 0.6% 3,797 3,667 3,228 3,746 3,733 2,906 3,712 (806) (21.7%) 3,297 (11.9%)

MRI Procedures 780 766 14 1.8% 746 4.6% 133 130 131 130 135 121 128 (7) (5.5%) 135 (10.4%)

 Inpatient 21 6 15 250.0% 30 (30.0%) 4 3 3 4 3 4 1 3 300.0% 7 (42.9%)

 Outpatient 759 760 (1) (0.1%) 716 6.0% 129 127 128 126 132 117 127 (10) (7.9%) 128 (8.6%)

Wound Care Procedures 736 632 104 16.5% 599 22.9% 146 134 63 122 143 128 140 (12) (8.6%) 126 1.6%

Pain Management Cases 117 139 (22) (15.8%) 149 (21.5%) 24 18 21 22 17 15 29 (14) (48.3%) 31 (51.6%)

Sleep Studies 311 271 40 14.8% 286 8.7% 49 58 57 49 54 44 58 (14) (24.1%) 46 (4.3%)

CT Procedures 3,084 3,227 (143) (4.4%) 3,022 2.1% 496 480 490 532 551 535 552 (17) (3.1%) 517 3.5%

Total Imaging Procedures 13,649 13,609 40 0.3% 13,138 3.9% 2,257 2,107 2,222 2,441 2,390 2,232 2,221 11 0.5% 2,144 4.1%

Fiscal-Year-to-Date Six-Month Trend Current Month

Patient Volumes and Utilization Statistics

Southwest Health System Consolidated
Through the Period Ending Jun-24

1



Actual Budget $ Var % Var Prior % Var Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Budget $ Var % Var Prior Year % Var

Inpatient Revenue $11,184 $11,727 ($543) (4.6%) $11,098 0.8% $2,216 $1,963 $1,774 $2,256 $1,234 $1,742 $1,859 ($117) (6.3%) $1,770 (1.6%)

Outpatient Revenue 65,626 67,267 (1,641) (2.4%) 65,023 0.9% 11,149 10,515 10,232 11,702 11,544 10,485 11,059 (574) (5.2%) 11,470 (8.6%)
   Gross Patient Revenue 76,810 78,994 (2,184) (2.8%) 76,121 0.9% 13,365 12,478 12,006 13,958 12,778 12,227 12,918 (691) (5.3%) 13,240 (7.7%)

Revenue Deductions

   Medicare 12,074 12,838 764 6.0% 12,688 4.8% 1,942 1,561 2,164 2,236 1,956 2,216 2,101 (115) (5.5%) 2,445 9.4%

   Medicaid 14,100 16,166 2,066 12.8% 16,554 14.8% 2,871 2,077 2,027 2,613 2,457 2,056 2,647 591 22.3% 2,741 25.0%

   Prior Year Cost Report Adj-MCARE (151) 0 151 0.0% (112) 34.8% 0 0 0 (151) 0 0 0 0 0.0% (112) (100.0%)

   Prior Year Cost Report Adj-MCAID (9) 0 9 0.0% 54 116.7% 0 0 0 (9) 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0%

   UPL (5,694) (6,013) (319) (5.3%) (6,330) (10.0%) (949) (951) (949) (949) (949) (949) (1,002) (53) (5.3%) (1,422) (33.3%)

   Managed Medicare 9,324 8,516 (808) (9.5%) 9,109 (2.4%) 1,605 1,363 1,449 1,930 1,390 1,587 1,393 (194) (13.9%) 1,241 (27.9%)

   Managed Care (HMO/PPO) Discounts 5,203 4,222 (981) (23.2%) 2,653 (96.1%) 839 768 911 980 770 934 690 (244) (35.4%) 493 (89.5%)

   Charity & Indigent care 2,358 1,763 (595) (33.7%) 1,612 (46.3%) 366 442 278 387 450 435 289 (146) (50.5%) 314 (38.5%)

   Other Discounts 2,590 2,698 108 4.0% 2,634 1.7% 423 551 291 362 489 474 442 (32) (7.2%) 496 4.4%

   Self Pay Discounts 0 374 374 100.0% 0 0.0% 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 62 100.0% 0 0.0%

   Implicit Price Concessions 2,767 2,022 (745) (36.8%) 1,887 (46.6%) 193 529 391 559 576 519 331 (188) (56.8%) 652 20.4%

   Total Deductions 42,562 42,586 24 0.1% 40,749 (4.4%) 7,290 6,340 6,562 7,958 7,139 7,272 6,953 (319) (4.6%) 6,848 (6.2%)

      Net Patient Revenue 34,248 36,408 (2,160) (5.9%) 35,372 (3.2%) 6,075 6,138 5,444 6,000 5,639 4,955 5,965 (1,010) (16.9%) 6,392 (22.5%)

Other Revenue 3,630 3,163 467 14.8% 2,735 32.8% 407 458 444 949 824 548 486 62 12.7% 574 (4.5%)

      Net Operating Revenue 37,878 39,571 (1,693) (4.3%) 38,107 (0.6%) 6,482 6,596 5,888 6,949 6,463 5,503 6,451 (948) (14.7%) 6,966 (21.0%)

Operating Expenses

   Salaries 18,982 19,793 811 4.1% 19,140 0.8% 3,084 3,391 2,997 3,337 3,206 2,967 3,120 153 4.9% 3,076 3.6%

   Employee Benefits 3,430 3,391 (39) (1.2%) 3,707 7.5% 536 585 533 637 495 646 559 (87) (15.5%) 648 0.2%

   Professional Fees 821 806 (15) (1.8%) 920 10.8% 151 100 157 129 166 118 133 15 11.2% 196 39.6%

   Medical Supplies 1,899 2,063 164 8.0% 1,838 (3.3%) 356 288 268 350 476 161 333 172 51.6% 331 51.3%

   Pharmaceutical Supplies 4,217 4,035 (182) (4.5%) 3,683 (14.5%) 775 566 755 798 674 650 623 (27) (4.2%) 573 (13.4%)

   Other Supplies 488 657 169 25.8% 582 16.2% 87 82 73 81 92 73 104 31 30.2% 94 22.1%

   Purchased Services 1,752 2,032 280 13.8% 2,029 13.7% 262 310 280 308 333 260 334 74 22.1% 396 34.4%

   Lease and Rent 173 164 (9) (5.7%) 192 9.9% 25 49 31 24 22 24 26 2 8.1% 42 42.1%

   Insurance 484 534 50 9.5% 486 0.4% 84 81 78 77 76 87 89 2 3.0% 88 2.1%

   Utilities 451 613 162 26.5% 577 21.9% 78 31 109 47 120 65 95 30 30.9% 87 25.1%

   Depreciation & Amortization 1,790 1,809 19 1.1% 2,198 18.6% 315 302 317 283 292 282 285 3 1.3% 362 22.1%

   Interest 690 632 (58) (9.2%) 640 (7.9%) 121 113 131 106 109 110 104 (6) (6.0%) 71 (54.7%)

   Other 3,723 3,718 (5) (0.2%) 3,572 (4.2%) 678 635 584 617 608 601 608 7 1.2% 461 (30.5%)

   Total Operating Expenses 38,900 40,247 1,347 3.4% 39,564 1.7% 6,552 6,533 6,313 6,794 6,669 6,044 6,413 369 5.8% 6,425 5.9%

      Operating Margin (1,022) (676) (346) 51.2% ($1,457) 29.9% (70) 63 (425) 155 (206) (541) $38 (579) (1,601.4%) $541 (199.9%)

Non-Operating Revenue (Exp)

   Investment Income 166 225 (59) (26.2%) 96 72.9% 75 (63) 40 (10) 70 53 38 15 39.5% 32 65.6%

   Other 1,080 945 135 14.3% 954 13.2% 238 155 304 7 182 192 164 28 17.1% 172 11.6%

   Total Non-Operating Revenue (Exp) 1,246 1,170 76 6.5% 1,050 18.7% 313 92 344 (3) 252 245 202 43 21.3% 204 20.1%

      Net Margin $224 $494 ($270) (54.7%) ($407) 155.0% $243 $155 ($81) $152 $46 ($296) $240 ($536) (223.3%) $745 (139.7%)

      EBIDA $2,704 $2,935 ($231) (7.9%) $2,431 11.2% $679 $570 $367 $541 $447 $96 $629 ($533) (84.7%) $1,178 (91.9%)

      Total Profit Margin 0.6% 1.2% (1.1%) 3.7% 2.3% (1.4%) 2.2% 0.7% (5.4%) 3.7% 10.7%
      EBIDA Margin 7.1% 7.4% 6.4% 10.5% 8.6% 6.2% 7.8% 6.9% 1.7% 9.8% 16.9%

Fiscal-Year-to-Date Six-Month Trend Current Month

Operating Performance Summary

Southwest Health System Consolidated
Through the Period Ending Jun-24

1



Income Statement
Southwest Health System Consolidated

Through the Period Ending Jun-24

Variance * Prior Variance * Prior Variance *
$ % Year $ % $ % Year $ %

$1,742 $1,859 ($117) (6.3%) $1,770 ($28) (1.6%) Inpatient Revenue $11,184 $11,727 ($543) (4.6%) $11,098 $86 0.8%

10,485 11,059 (574) (5.2%) 11,470 (985) (8.6%) Outpatient Revenue 65,626 67,267 (1,641) (2.4%) 65,023 603 0.9%

12,227 12,918 (691) (5.3%) 13,240 (1,013) (7.7%) TOTAL GROSS PATIENT REVENUE 76,810 78,994 (2,184) (2.8%) 76,121 689 0.9%

REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

2,216 2,101 (115) (5.4%) 2,445 229 5.0% Medicare Contractual 12,074 12,838 764 7.1% 12,688 614 5.2%

2,056 2,647 591 22.3% 2,741 685 25.0% Medicaid Contractual 14,100 16,166 2,066 12.8% 16,554 2,454 15.2%

0 0 0 0.0% (112) (112) (100.0%) Prior Year Medicare Cost Report Adj. (151) 0 151 0.0% (112) 39 34.7%

0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% Prior Year Medicaid Cost Report Adj. (9) 0 9 0.0% 54 63 117.1%

(949) (1,002) (53) (5.3%) (1,422) (473) (33.3%) UPL (5,694) (6,013) (319) (5.3%) (6,330) (636) (10.0%)

1,587 1,393 (194) (13.9%) 1,241 (346) (27.9%) Managed Medicare 9,324 8,516 (808) (9.5%) 9,109 (215) (2.4%)

934 690 (244) (35.5%) 493 (441) (89.4%) Managed Care (HMO/PPO) Discounts 5,203 4,222 (981) (23.2%) 2,653 (2,550) (96.1%)

435 289 (146) (50.5%) 314 (121) (38.6%) Charity & Indigent Discounts 2,358 1,763 (595) (33.8%) 1,612 (746) (46.3%)

474 442 (32) (7.4%) 496 22 4.3% Other Discounts 2,590 2,698 108 4.0% 2,634 44 1.7%

0 62 62 100.0% 0 0 0.0% Self Pay Discounts 0 374 374 100.0% 0 0 0.0%

519 331 (188) (56.7%) 652 133 20.3% Implicit Price Concessions 2,767 2,022 (745) (36.9%) 1,887 (880) (46.6%)

7,272 6,953 (319) (4.6%) 6,848 (424) (6.2%) TOTAL REVENUE DEDUCTIONS 42,562 42,586 24 0.0% 40,749 (1,813) (4.5%)

4,955 5,965 (1,010) (16.9%) 6,392 (1,437) (22.5%) TOTAL NET PATIENT REVENUE 34,248 36,408 (2,160) (5.9%) 35,372 (1,124) (3.2%)

548 486 62 12.7% 574 (26) (4.5%) Other Revenue 3,630 3,163 467 14.8% 2,735 895 32.8%

5,503 6,451 (948) (14.7%) 6,966 (1,463) (21.0%) TOTAL NET REVENUE 37,878 39,571 (1,693) (4.3%) 38,107 (229) (0.6%)

OPERATING EXPENSE

2,967 3,120 153 4.9% 3,076 109 3.6% Salary and Wages 18,982 19,793 811 4.1% 19,140 158 0.8%

646 559 (87) (15.5%) 648 2 0.2% Employee Benefits 3,430 3,391 (39) (1.2%) 3,707 277 7.5%

118 133 15 11.2% 196 78 39.6% Professional Fees 821 806 (15) (1.8%) 920 99 10.8%

161 333 172 51.6% 331 170 51.3% Medical Supplies 1,899 2,063 164 8.0% 1,838 (61) (3.3%)

650 623 (27) (4.2%) 573 (77) (13.4%) Pharmaceutical Supplies 4,217 4,035 (182) (4.5%) 3,683 (534) (14.5%)

73 104 31 30.2% 94 21 22.1% Other Supplies 488 657 169 25.8% 582 94 16.2%

260 334 74 22.1% 396 136 34.4% Purchased Services 1,752 2,032 280 13.8% 2,029 277 13.7%

24 26 2 8.1% 42 18 42.1% Lease and Rent 173 164 (9) (5.7%) 192 19 9.9%

87 89 2 3.0% 88 1 2.1% Insurance 484 534 50 9.5% 486 2 0.4%

65 95 30 30.9% 87 22 25.1% Utilities 451 613 162 26.5% 577 126 21.9%

282 285 3 1.3% 362 80 22.1% Depreciation & Amortization 1,790 1,809 19 1.1% 2,198 408 18.6%

110 104 (6) (6.0%) 71 (39) (54.7%) Interest 690 632 (58) (9.2%) 640 (50) (7.9%)

601 608 7 1.2% 461 (140) (30.5%) Other Total Operating Expenses 3,723 3,718 (5) (0.2%) 3,572 (151) (4.2%)

6,044 6,413 369 5.8% 6,425 381 5.9% TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 38,900 40,247 1,347 3.4% 39,564 664 1.7%

(541) 38 (579) (1,601.4%) 541 (1,082) (199.9%) OPERATING MARGIN (1,022) (676) (346) (51.3%) (1,457) 435 29.9%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXP)

53 38 15 39.5% 32 21 65.6% Investment Income 166 225 (59) (26.2%) 96 70 72.9%

192 164 28 17.1% 172 20 11.6% Other Total Non-Operating Expenses (EXP) 1,080 945 135 14.3% 954 126 13.2%

245 202 43 21.3% 204 41 20.1% TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXP) 1,246 1,170 76 6.5% 1,050 196 18.7%

($296) $240 ($536) (223.3%) $745 ($1,041) (139.7%) NET MARGIN $224 $494 ($270) (54.7%) ($407) $631 155.0%

$96 $629 ($533) (84.7%) $1,178 ($1,082) (91.9%) EBIDA $2,704 $2,935 ($231) (7.9%) $2,431 $273 11.2%

(164) Bond Debt Payment (982)
(77) Line of Credit Payments (463)
(194) Reserve for Capital Infrastructure (542)
(39) Capital Purchases (340)
(128) Medicare Overpayment - Repayment (1,278)
(388) Grand Total (766)

Current Month Fiscal-Year-to-Date

BudgetActual Budget
Variance *

Actual

1



Current Fiscal
Month YTD

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Margin ($296) $224

Adjustment for Depreciation and Amortization 282 1,790

Change in Working Capital
Short-Term Investments (34) 2,232
Assets Whose Use Is Limited 0 0
Patient Accounts Receivable (Net) 82 (378)
Inventories (71) 73
Other Current Assets (376) (475)
Accounts Payable 531 82
Accrued Expense Payable 45 712
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 275 (832)
Other Current Liabilities 397 1,288

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 835 4,716

Changes in Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities
Assets Whose Use is Limited or Donor-Restricted (206) (656)
Noncurrent Investments (Unrestricted) 0 0
Other Assets 3 (6)
Other Liabilities 0 0

Net Cash Provided by Noncurrent Operating Activities (203) (662)

Capital and Related Financing Activities
(44) (361)
0 0

(136) (1,168)
3 384

Short Term Lease Obligations 0 0
Long Term Lease Obligations 0 0

0 0
(2) (119)

Net Capital & Related Financing Activities (179) (1,264)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 453 2,790

Cash at Beginning of Period 5,949 3,612

Cash at End of Period $6,402 $6,402

Other Fund Balance Changes

Property, Plant & Equipment
Inter-Company
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Statement Of Cash Flows
Southwest Health System Consolidated

Jun-24

Long-Term Debt

Donor Restricted Contributions Received

1



Jun-24 May-24 Jun-23 Dec-23

$ % $ % $ %
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $6,402 $5,952 $453 7.6% $10,722 ($4,317) (40.3%) $3,612 $2,793 77.3%

Short-Term Investments 8,307 8,273 34 0.4% 3,523 4,784 135.8% 10,539 (2,232) (21.2%)
Assets Whose Use is Limited, and Required for Current 
Liabilities

0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

Patient Accounts Receivable, Net 6,577 6,659 (82) (1.2%) 5,510 1,067 19.4% 6,199 378 6.1%

Inventories 1,364 1,293 71 5.6% 1,433 (69) (4.8%) 1,437 (73) (5.1%)

Other Current Assets 1,964 1,588 376 23.7% 1,724 240 13.9% 1,489 475 31.9%

24,617 23,765 852 3.6% 22,912 1,705 7.4% 23,276 1,341 5.8%

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Donor-Restricted 4,652 4,446 206 4.6% 2,899 1,753 60.5% 3,996 656 16.4%

     Net of Amount Required for Current Liabilities

30,461 30,699 (238) (0.8%) 33,456 (2,995) (9.0%) 31,890 (1,429) (4.5%)

0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

198 201 (3) 0.0% 161 37 24.4% 192 6 3.1%

Total Assets $59,928 $59,111 $817 1.4% $59,428 $500 0.8% $59,354 $574 1.0%

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $4,038 $3,507 $531 15.1% $4,873 ($835) (17.1%) $3,956 $82 2.1%

Accrued Expense Payable 3,554 3,509 45 1.3% 2,588 966 37.4% 2,839 715 25.2%

Estimated Third Party Payor Settlements 3,449 3,174 275 8.7% 4,458 (1,009) (22.6%) 4,281 (832) (19.4%)

Other Current Liabilities 4,222 3,825 397 10.4% 2,208 2,014 91.3% 2,934 1,288 43.9%

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 1,185 1,321 (136) (10.3%) 2,494 (1,309) (52.5%) 2,353 (1,168) (49.6%)

Short Term Lease Obligations 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

Total Current Liabilities 16,448 15,336 1,112 7.3% 16,621 (173) (1.0%) 16,363 85 0.5%

0 0 $0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

Long Term Lease Obligations 0 0 $0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

25,155 25,152 3 0.0% 25,504 (349) (1.4%) 24,771 384 1.6%

0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0%

Total Liabilities 41,603 40,488 1,115 2.8% 42,125 (522) (1.2%) 41,134 469 1.1%

Fund Balances

Unrestricted 18,597 18,804 (207) (1.1%) $17,343 $1,254 7.2% $18,364 $233 1.3%

Temporarily Donor-Restricted (272) (181) (91) (50.2%) (40) (232) (579.6%) (144) ($128) 88.8%

Permanently Donor-Restricted 0 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 $0 0.0%

Total Fund Balances 18,325 18,623 (298) (1.6%) 17,303 1,022 5.9% 18,220 105 0.6%

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $59,928 $59,111 $817 1.4% $59,428 $500 0.8% $59,354 $574 1.0%

Days Cash on Hand 71 67 4 6.5% 70 3 4.0% 69 3 5.1%
Restricted for Bond Debt Reserve 6 1,313
Restricted for Capital Infrastructure 10 2,114

88

Variance*

Balance Sheet

Last Year 
End

Current 
Month

Previous 
Month

Variance* Last Year Variance

Southwest Health System Consolidated

Total Current Assets

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion

Other Liabilities

Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net

Other Assets

Inter-Company

Noncurrent Investments (Unrestricted)

1



High Low Avg

Days Unbilled 1 5 days 7 days 27 days 4 days 11 days

Rolling 12 Mos Cash Collect % Net Rev 100.0% 102.2% 103.5% 101.1% 102.3%

A/R Days (Net) 3 48 days 37 days 42 days 33 days 37 days

Percent of Medicare < 60 days 4 95% 96% 100% 87% 96%

Percent of Medicaid < 90 days 5 90% 88% 88% 83% 86%

Percent of Commercial Insurance < 90 days 6 90% 64% 75% 62% 70%

Credit Balance % 7 3% 6% 6% 5% 5%

Cost to Collect per Dollar 8 $0.05 $0.03 $0.03 $0.01 $0.03

High Low Avg

Days Unbilled 1 5 days 0 days 0 days 0 days 0 days

Rolling 12 Mos Cash Collect % Net Rev 100.0% 92% 97.4% 92.2% 94.4%

A/R Days (Net) 3 48 days 32 days 39 days 32 days 34 days

Percent of Medicare < 60 days 4 95% 74% 93% 74% 87%

Percent of Medicaid < 90 days 5 90% 83% 93% 83% 88%

Percent of Commercial Insurance < 90 days 6 90% 69% 82% 69% 78%

Upfront Cash Collections 9 $20 $14 $18 $13 $15

Credit Balance % 7 3% 6% 6% 5% 5%

Denial Rate Past 90 Days 10 3%

AR Aging (000's) 0 - 30 31 - 60 61- 90 91 - 120 Over 120

Medicare $265 $32 $27 $20 $56

Aging % 66% 8% 7% 5% 14%
Medicaid $134 $40 $34 $7 $36

Aging % 53% 16% 14% 3% 14%
Managed Medicare $148 $22 $27 $13 $111

Aging % 46% 7% 8% 4% 35%
Commercial Insurance $151 $145 $58 $35 $123

Aging % 29% 28% 11% 7% 24%
Self Pay $83 $85 $65 $49 $562

Aging % 10% 10% 8% 6% 67%
Total $780 $324 $211 $123 $888

Aging % 34% 14% 9% 5% 38%

Definitions:

 1.  Days Unbilled:  Discharged not billed amount on the last day of the month divided by daily gross revenue for the current month.

 2.  Rolling 12 Mos Cash Collect % Net Revenue*:  Rolling 12 mo Cash Collections / (Rolling 12 months 30 day lag Net Rev)

 3.  AR Days Net:  Net Accounts Receivable / (Last 3 months NPR Less BD / Days in Period).

 4.  Medicare:  Traditional Medicare ONLY, excludes all Managed Care Medicare payers.

 5.  Medicaid:  Includes ALL Medicaid, traditional and managed care.

 6.  Commercial Insurance:  Includes all commercially contracted payers (report Managed Medicare payers on Managed Medicare line); excluding Charity and Self-Pay.

 7.  Credit Balance %:  Credit balances on the last day of the month divided by gross A/R on the last day of the month.

 8.  Cost to Collect per Dollar:  Direct costs for the month for business office and admissions, including benefits, divided by collections for the month.

 9.  Upfront Collections: collection of all co-pays and deductibles at time of visit

10. Denial Rate %: Total dollar amount of claims denied by payers within past 90 divided by total dollar amount of claims submitted within past 90 days.

Current MonthTarget
FYTD

Indicator

Business Office Elements
Through the Period Ending Jun-24

Southwest Memorial Hospital

Southwest Health System Clinics

Indicator Current MonthTarget
FYTD

1



Southwest Health System Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Qtr End Month End Month End Qtr End
Operational Analysis 31 31 30 30 31 31 30 30 31 31 30 30 31 31 30 31 30

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
12/31/2020 3/31/2021 6/30/2021 9/30/2021 12/31/2021 3/31/2022 6/30/2022 9/30/2022 12/31/2022 3/31/2023 6/30/2023 9/30/2023 12/31/2023 3/31/2024 4/30/2024 5/31/2024 6/30/2024

Return on Assets 10.47% 10.41% 8.79% 8.76% 10.49% 8.25% 8.47% 8.49% 8.39% 6.86% 5.72% 10.01% 10.11% 9.95% 9.01%
25th Percentile 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15% 1.15%

37 1/2th Percentile 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73% 1.73%
50th Percentile 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30%
75th Percentile 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88% 2.88%

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,938,749 14,246,889 14,485,226 14,186,748 16,210,518 15,608,901 14,874,841 15,633,809 14,393,771 13,783,678 14,244,937 14,974,148 14,151,422 13,489,967 13,935,212 14,225,665 14,708,660
Accounts Receivable 5,276,767 6,186,503 5,694,024 5,670,975 7,049,300 8,108,042 7,369,432 6,453,725 6,328,176 6,934,439 5,509,664 5,855,165 6,199,239 7,963,525 7,626,951 6,659,054 6,576,725

Unrestricted Investments 1,136,551 1,123,029 1,170,121 1,174,536 1,299,473 1,116,755 1,117,144 1,030,158 1,090,155 1,131,110 1,180,793 1,186,233 1,303,804 1,381,570 1,381,570 1,384,081 1,424,474

Current Liabilites 17,010,166 16,749,299 16,955,429 16,446,569 17,723,094 19,128,610 17,661,119 17,497,180 16,689,029 18,044,197 16,620,586 16,675,836 16,525,284 16,467,918 15,811,700 15,335,514 16,444,750
Acid Test Ratio 1.26 1.29 1.26 1.28 1.39 1.30 1.32 1.32 1.31 1.21 1.26 1.32 1.31 1.39 1.45 1.45 1.38
25th Percentile 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33 0.33

37 1/2th Percentile 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49 0.49
50th percentile 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65
75th Percentile 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.81

Total Current Assets 22,874,136 23,031,409 22,695,909 22,694,932 26,421,836 26,654,593 25,394,909 25,307,633 23,573,347 23,968,195 22,911,541 23,698,427 23,276,391 24,526,181 24,527,289 23,765,119 24,613,214
Unrestricted Investments 1,136,551 1,123,029 1,170,121 1,174,536 1,299,473 1,116,755 1,117,144 1,030,158 1,090,155 1,131,110 1,180,793 1,186,233 1,303,804 1,381,570 1,381,570 1,384,081 1,424,474

Curent Liabilities 17,010,166 16,749,299 16,955,429 16,446,569 17,723,094 19,128,610 17,661,119 17,497,180 16,689,029 18,044,197 16,620,586 16,675,836 16,525,284 16,467,918 15,811,700 15,335,514 16,444,750
Current Ratio 1.41 1.44 1.41 1.45 1.56 1.45 1.50 1.51 1.48 1.39 1.45 1.49 1.49 1.57 1.64 1.64 1.58

25th Percentile 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32 1.32
37 1/2th Percentile 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97 1.97

50th percentile 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63 2.63
75th Percentile 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29 3.29

Total Cash and Equivalents 14,938,749 14,246,889 14,485,226 14,186,748 16,210,518 15,608,901 14,874,841 15,633,809 14,393,771 13,783,678 14,244,937 14,974,148 14,151,422 13,489,967 13,935,212 14,225,665 14,708,660
Daily Cash Operating Expense (Rolling 3 mos) 196,745 212,739 205,016 209,401 207,927 206,471
Daily Cash Operating Expense (Rolling 6 mos) 201,347 204,605 208,898 209,686 211,631 205,743

Daily Cash Operating Expense (Rolling 12 mos) 170,927 165,307 168,020 173,514 186,750 186,002 186,604 195,841 197,000 199,000 204,143 203,701 205,737 205,123 204,615 206,071 205,240
DCOH (Unrestricted Cash) 65 63 63 60 66 64 61 63 56 52 53 58 17 26 27 29 31

DCOH (Self-Restricted/Restricted Investments) 22 23 23 22 21 20 19 17 17 18 17 30 63 57 54 55 57
DCOH OLD * 87 86 86 82 87 84 80 80 73 69 70 74 69 66 68 69 72

DCOH CHC ** 79 69 67 70 74 69 65 66 67 71
DCOH NEW *** 88 80 83 81 84 88

Total Available for Debt Service 6,645,642 7,341,805 4,665,541 5,579,280 6,870,488 7,034,339 7,644,739 7,490,886 4,756,578 4,158,932 4,037,100 4,608,999 6,038,633 7,001,022 7,032,960 6,864,613 6,543,169
Investment Value Change -11,686 14,511 12,761 -54,932 15,275 -55,444 -126,247 -191,830 -90,340 45,951 24,123 -109,336 52,969 21,839 -67,812 45,117 41,426

MADS 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 3,629,172 2,626,048 2,626,048 2,626,048 2,626,048 2,626,048 2,626,048
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.83 2.02 1.29 1.54 1.89 1.94 2.11 2.06 1.31 1.15 1.11 2.35 2.30 2.67 2.68 2.61 2.49

Long Term Debt 29,283,005 28,759,713 28,243,561 28,617,768 29,753,250 28,282,232 28,097,565 28,156,581 27,627,886 26,075,139 25,503,776 25,289,882 24,770,872 25,145,137 25,148,560 25,152,089 25,155,497
District Funded Per Agreement -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,505,828 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952 -1,796,952

Long Term Debt Adjusted 27,777,177 27,253,885 26,737,733 27,111,940 28,247,422 26,776,404 26,591,737 26,650,753 26,122,058 24,278,188 23,706,825 23,784,054 22,973,921 23,348,185 23,351,609 23,355,138 23,358,545
URNA 18,066,549 17,951,208 18,385,033 18,263,399 18,754,861 19,179,762 19,256,753 19,273,970 16,311,635 17,077,662 18,498,192 17,896,120 17,516,899 18,284,393 18,516,725 18,407,631 18,067,098

Debt to Capitlization Ratio 60.59% 60.29% 59.26% 59.75% 60.10% 58.27% 58.00% 58.03% 61.56% 58.71% 56.17% 57.06% 56.74% 56.08% 55.77% 55.92% 56.39%

*DCOH OLD utilizes a rolling 12 month daily cash operating 
expense and does not include restricted investment but 

does include self restricted

**DCOH CHC utilzies a rolling 6 month daily cash operating 
expense and does not include restricted investments
***DCOH NEW utilizes a 3 month daily cash operating 

expense and includes both self restricted and restricted 
investments.

Debt to Capitalization

(Rolling 12 months)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Acid Test Ratio

Days Cash on Hand

Current Ratio



Southwest Health System, Inc
Schedule of Debt Payments
6/30/2024

District 
Sales Tax Hosp Portion Total Debt Restricted for Disbursement Interest Earned

2022 MCHD SWHS Payment Capital Imprvmnt Capital Imprvmnt
Jan-22 167,985.86           134,726.31          302,712.17         
Feb-22 280,228.83           22,223.62             302,452.45         
Mar-22 139,780.84           162,935.04          302,715.58         
Apr-22 139,048.74           163,545.48          302,624.22         

May-22 173,697.25           129,012.06          302,709.11         
Jun-22 171,334.44           130,791.41          302,125.85         
Jul-22 185,064.66           117,619.79          302,684.45         

Aug-22 205,825.45           96,803.89             302,629.34         
Sep-22 195,991.81           106,516.59          302,508.40         
Oct-22 202,652.82           99,993.51             302,646.33         
Nov-22 203,107.00           95,781.49             298,888.49         
Dec-22 190,835.07           111,643.33          302,479.40         

2,255,552.77        1,371,592.52       3,627,175.79      
62.2% 37.8% 100%

2023
Jan-23 161,584.44           120,159.11          281,743.55         
Feb-23 184,839.65           117,470.50          302,310.15         
Mar-23 137,543.23           165,097.63          302,640.86         
Apr-23 137,628.31           164,960.23          302,588.54         

May-23 159,286.51           143,231.35          302,517.86         
Jun-23 164,346.28           97,069.92             261,416.20         
Jul-23 192,819.87           109,615.48          302,435.35         

Aug-23 212,821.08           165,000.00          163,672.92         214,148.16             
Transfer from Bond Reserve *New Agreement 501,560.84             

Sep-23 199,996.83           165,000.00          163,672.92         201,323.91             1,097.55                  
Oct-23 191,742.64           165,000.00          163,672.92         193,069.72             3,237.51                  
Nov-23 208,249.00           165,000.00          163,672.92         209,576.08             4,249.14                  
Dec-23 196,447.24           165,000.00          163,672.92         197,774.32             4,905.81                  
Dec-23 Int from Bond Debt Res 40,661.13               

YTD 2,147,305.08        1,742,604.22       2,874,017.11      1,517,453.03          -                           54,151.14               

2024
Jan-24 178,384.07           165,000.00          163,672.92         179,711.15             6,273.64                  
Feb-24 184,406.61           165,000.00          163,672.92         185,733.69             7,224.13                  
Mar-24 141,586.09           165,000.00          163,672.92         142,913.17             (5,527.03)                7,404.17                  
Apr-24 143,071.51           165,000.00          163,672.92         144,398.59             (507,603.00)            8,965.31                  

May-24 168,289.71           165,000.00          163,672.92         169,616.79             8,772.22                  
Jun-24 178,686.12           165,000.00          163,672.92         180,013.20             (28,613.50)              43,054.09               
Jul-24

Aug-24
Sep-24
Oct-24
Nov-24
Dec-24

YTD 994,424.11           990,000.00          982,037.52         2,519,839.62          (541,743.53)            135,844.70             
Available for Capital Improvements 2,113,940.79          

Re-amortization of Debt occurred on Aug 17th.  At this time the Debt Prin amount was decreased for the
next 40 months.  In addition the calculation for DCOH changed to a 3 month avearge of expenses and now
includes the Bond Reserve and Restricted for Capital Improvement accounts.



Mission Statement 
It is the mission of the Montezuma County Hospital District to assure high quality healthcare facilities for the 

community, Montezuma County, and the surrounding areas and to provide support and assistance in a 
manner which is consistent with a high standard of healthcare. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MCHD Finance Report              

 



Colorado Department of Revenue

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE OF DISTRIBUTION OF FY 2023
DISTRICT RETURNS FY 2023 FY 2023 MONTHLY

FY 2023 RETURNS 91,806$                  RATE

Delta 104,472 32.58% 29,912$                  2,493$     
La Junta 20,174 6.29% 5,776$                    481$        
Montezuma 80,621 25.14% 23,084$                  1,924$     
South Park 38,869 12.12% 11,129$                  927$        
Ute Pass 76,506 23.86% 21,905$                  1,825$     

 
Totals 320,642 100.00% 91,806$                  7,651$     

Full Annual Cost 91,806$                  

HEALTH SERVICES
COST RECOVERY



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
December 31, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 PAGE 
 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 

Title Page  
 

Table of Contents  
 
FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 Independent Auditors’ Report  
 
 Basic Financial Statements 
 
 Government–Wide Financial Statements 
 

 Statement of Net Position 1 
 

 Statement of Activities 2 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
 Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 3 

 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – 

 Governmental Funds 4 
 

 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 
 in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 5 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 6 – 17 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
 General Fund – Budgetary Comparison Schedule 18 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Montezuma County Hospital District 
Cortez, Colorado 
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 
Opinions  
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, of the Montezuma County 
Hospital District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Montezuma County Hospital 
District as of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, thereof for the year then ended, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS).  
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be independent of the Montezuma County Hospital District 
and to meet our ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
   
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve 
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt 
shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.  Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 
  Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test 
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures of the financial statements. 

  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

  Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required budgetary information 
on page 18 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Management has not presented the management’s discussion and analysis that governmental accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion is not affected by this missing information. 
 
 
 
August 16, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



2023 2022
ASSETS

Cash and Investments 2,147,507$       2,022,966$       
Accounts Receivable 385,452           376,496           
Escrow Deposit 800,000           800,000           
Property Taxes Receivable 536,808           458,000           
Prepaid Expenses 5,823               6,071               
Capital Assets, not depreciated 567,128           567,128           
Capital Assets, depreciated 42,126,173       43,577,202       

TOTAL ASSETS 46,568,891       47,807,863       

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 5,531               189,774           
Accrued Expenses 8,500               8,500               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,031             198,274           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue 536,808           458,000           

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 42,693,301       44,144,330       
Unrestricted 3,324,751        3,007,259        

TOTAL NET POSITION 46,018,052$     47,151,589$     

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

1

DRAFT



Capital 
Charges for Grants and

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions 2023 2022
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities

General Government 3,961,524$    38,930$         7,500$           (3,915,094)$    (4,075,778)$       

    Total Governmental Activities 3,961,524$    38,930$         7,500$           (3,915,094)      (4,075,778)         

GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes 482,279          608,891             
Specific Ownership Tax 60,104            75,961              
Hospital Expansion Tax 2,160,544       2,152,570          
Interest 45,584            1,692                
Other 12,046            2,767                

SPECIAL ITEM
Capital Contribution 21,000            91,826              

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 2,781,557       2,933,707          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,133,537)      (1,142,071)         

NET POSITION, Beginning 47,151,589     48,293,660        

NET POSITION, Ending 46,018,052$    47,151,589$      

ACTIVITIES

MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2023

PROGRAM REVENUES

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

GOVERNMENTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2

DRAFT



2023 2022
ASSETS 

Cash and Investments 2,147,507$    2,022,966$    
Accounts Receivable 385,452         376,496         
Escrow Deposit 800,000         800,000         
Prepaid Expenses 5,823            6,071            
Property Taxes Receivable 536,808         458,000         

TOTAL ASSETS 3,875,590$    3,663,533$    

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 5,531$          189,774$       
Accrued Expenses 8,500            8,500            

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,031          198,274         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue 536,808         458,000         

FUND EQUITY
Fund Balance

Nonspendable 805,823         806,071         
Restricted 659,406         496,312         
Unassigned 1,859,522      1,704,876      

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,324,751      3,007,259      

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, 
AND FUND EQUITY 3,875,590$    3,663,533$    

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Fund Balance 3,324,751$    3,007,259$    

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 42,693,301    44,144,330    

Net position of governmental activities 46,018,052$  47,151,589$  

MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

December 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

3

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2023

2023 2022
REVENUES

Property Taxes 482,279$       608,891$       
Specific Ownership Taxes 60,104          75,961          
Hospital Expansion Tax 2,160,544      2,152,570      
Intergovernmental 7,500            140,934         
Investment Income 45,584          1,692            
Lease Revenue 38,930          41,560          
Other 12,046          2,767            

TOTAL REVENUES 2,806,987      3,024,375      
  

EXPENDITURES   
Current

General Government
Insurance 6,350            5,800            
Legal and Professional Fees 48,315          224,640         
Other Expenses 10,726          1,691            
Contributions -               1,079            
County Treasurer Fees 9,650            11,059          

Capital Outlay 2,435,454      3,925,495      
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,510,495      4,169,764      

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 296,492         (1,145,389)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital Contributions 21,000          91,826          

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 21,000          91,826          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 317,492         (1,053,563)     

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 3,007,259      4,060,822      

FUND BALANCE, Ending 3,324,751$    3,007,259$    

GENERAL FUND

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

4

DRAFT



Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 317,492$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense
($1,740,509) exceeded capital outlay $289,480 for the current period. (1,451,029)     

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (1,133,537)$   

MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

5

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

6 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Montezuma County Hospital District (the “District”) was created April 28, 1975, in 
accordance with Chapter 32, Article 4 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, 1973, as 
applicable to special districts.  The District is a political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado and is governed by a Board of Directors elected by the residents of Montezuma 
County (the “County”).  The District operated Southwest Memorial Hospital (the 
“Hospital”), a s6ixty-one-bed acute care facility in Cortez, Colorado until September 14, 
1996.  On that date, the District, under a signed lease agreement, transferred the 
operations and certain net assets of the District to Southwest Health Systems. Inc. (SHS), 
a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, incorporated March 8, 1996, for the purpose of operating the 
Hospital.  The District continues to serve the people of the County through health care 
related projects.  The District retains all rights of ownership and general oversight of the 
real estate and physical hospital plant, as well as all aspects of health care issues and 
concerns within the District. 

 
The accounting policies of the Montezuma County Hospital District conform to generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments.  The following is a summary 
of the more significant policies: 

 
Reporting Entity 

 
In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the Montezuma County Hospital 
District has considered the possibility of inclusion of additional entities in its financial 
statements. 

 
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on financial accountability.  The 
District is financially accountable for organizations that make up its legal entity.  It is also 
financially accountable for legally separate organizations if District officials appoint a 
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will 
on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the District.  The District 
may also be financially accountable for organizations that are fiscally dependent upon it. 

 
The Health Facilities Enterprise was enacted to serve as a financing entity for the District, 
and is governed by a board comprised of The District’s elected board.  The Enterprise’s 
bonds are approved by The District’s board.  The activities of the Enterprise are reported 
in the General Fund of the District. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

7 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
District.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to 
a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges 
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of 
the current period.  For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  
 
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the District. 

 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.  

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

8 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s 
practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
In the fund financial statements, the District reports the following major governmental 

 funds: 
 

The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all 
financial resources of the District. 

 
Investments 

 
Investments are recorded at fair value.  
 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the governmental 
activities column in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined 
by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,500 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded 
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. 
 
Property and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight line method over 
the estimated useful lives between fifteen and forty years. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term 
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities fund type statement of 
net position.  

 
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received 
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

9 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Net Position 
 
The government-wide financial statements, utilize a net position presentation.  Net 
position is categorized as investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.   
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets includes the District’s capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
  
Restricted Net Position includes assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or 
granting agency) limitations on their use. The District typically uses restricted assets first, 
as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use until a 
future project. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position typically includes unrestricted liquid assets. The Board has the 
authority to revisit or alter this designation. 

 
Fund Balance 

 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications 
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective 
governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund 
financial statements are as follows: 
 

 Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. The District reports deposits and prepaid items 
as nonspendable at December 31, 2023. 
 

 Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been 
placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors 
(such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. The District reports sales tax revenue collected for debt 
service as restricted at December 31, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

10 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Fund Balance (Continued) 
 

 Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board 
of Directors.  These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
Board of Directors removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type 
of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were 
initially committed. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the 
extent that existing resources have been specifically committed for use in 
satisfying those contractual requirements. The District does not report any 
committed fund balances at December 31, 2023. 

 
 Unassigned – This classification includes the residual fund balance for the 

General Fund.  The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund 
balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting 
of Assigned fund balance amounts. 

 
The District would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed 
resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the 
right to selectively spend Unassigned resources. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows or resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position and 
fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows or resources. This separate 
financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
position and fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

11 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Property Taxes 

 
Property taxes are levied on November 1 and attach as an enforceable lien on property on 
January 1.  Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on February 28 and 
June 15.  The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and remits to the District 
on a monthly basis. 

 
Since property tax revenues are collected in arrears during the succeeding year, a receivable 
and corresponding deferred revenue are recorded at December 31.  As the tax is collected 
in the succeeding year, the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue and the receivable is 
reduced. 

 
Comparative Data   

 
Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial 
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the District’s financial 
position and operations.  However, complete comparative data in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion would 
make the financial statements unduly complex and difficult to read. 
 
Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  Neither is such data comparable 
to a consolidation.   
 

 
NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting  
 

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

 
 In September, District Management submits to the Board of Directors a proposed 

operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1.  The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.   

 
 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
 Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. 

 
 District Management is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between 

departments within any fund.  However, any revisions that alter the total expenditures 
of any fund must be approved by the Board of Directors. 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

12 

NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 
 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued) 
 

 Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the District on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

 
 Budgeted amounts in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as amended 

by the Board of Directors.  All appropriations lapse at year end.  
 
 
NOTE 3: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
A summary of deposits and investments as of December 31, 2023 follows: 

 
Deposits   $ 1,362,142 
Investments    785,365 
 

  Total   $ 2,147,507 
 
 Deposits 
 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits 
 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s 
deposits may not be returned to it.  The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) 
requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories.  
Eligibility is determined by state regulations.  At December 31, 2023, State regulatory 
commissioners have indicated that all financial institutions holding deposits for the District 
are eligible public depositories.   
 
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible 
collateral as determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to create a 
single collateral pool for all public funds held.  The pool is to be maintained by another 
institution, or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group.  The market 
value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits.   
 
The Authority has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits. 

  
 At December 31, 2023, the District had deposits with financial institutions with a carrying 

amount of $1,362,142.  The bank balances with the financial institutions were $1,373,843.  
Of these balances, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $873,843 
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the financial institutions 
name (PDPA). 

 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

13 

NOTE 3: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as 
a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Colorado statutes specify in which instruments the units of local government may invest 
which includes: 
 
 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities 
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 
 Local government investment pools 
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
 Certain money market funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 
 
The above investments are authorized for all funds and fund types used by Colorado 
municipalities. 
 
Fair Value 

 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable 
inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant observable inputs. 
 
At December 31, 2023, the District held investments in U.S. Government Agency Bonds 
in the amount of $785,365 with maturity dates of less than one and four years. Given the 
low risk of this type of investment, the District has not established a policy limiting the 
amount of investments in this type of security and deems it unnecessary at this time.  
These investments are valued with Level 1 inputs. 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

14 

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, is summarized below: 
 

 Balances   Balances 
 12/31/22 Additions Deletions 12/31/23 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, not depreciated 
Land $ 567,128 $ - $ - $ 567,128  
 Total Capital Assets, not 
 Depreciated  567,128  -  -  567,128 
 
Capital Assets, depreciated  
 Buildings  50,583,487  -  -  50,583,487 
 Infrastructure  5,132,568  268,480  -  5,401,048 
 Equipment  17,459,435  21,000  -  17,480,435 
Total Capital Assets, depreciated  73,175,490  289,480  -  73,464,970 
 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 
 Buildings  15,133,904  1,179,510  -  16,313,414 
 Infrastructure  1,083,941  202,986  -  1,286,927 
 Equipment  13,380,443  358,013  -  13,738,456 
Total Accumulated Depreciation  29,598,288  1,740,509  -  31,338,797 
 
Total Capital Assets, depreciated, net  43,577,202  (1,451,029)  -  42,126,173 
Governmental Activities,  
 Capital Assets, Net $ 44,144,330 $ (1,451,029) $  - $ 42,693,301 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the General Government activity.   

 
 
NOTE 5: LEASE AGREEMENTS 
 

Southwest Health Systems, Inc. (“SHS”) 
 
As part of the September 14, 1996, lease agreement, the District entered into an operating 
lease arrangement whereby it leases substantially all of the District’s capital assets to the 
SHS.  The lease expires on September 30, 2046 and is cancelable by default or by mutual 
agreement of the parties. The scheduled lease payments were intended to approximate the 
required payments on the District’s outstanding long-term revenue bonds. The lease 
agreement was amended in 1999 and increased the lease payments beginning in 2000 for 
certain improvements.  Upon termination of the lease for any reason, the SHS will be 
required to transfer all leased assets back to the District. 
 
On April 9, 2003, the lease agreement was amended in anticipation of the District financing 
an expansion of the Hospital.  In the amended agreement, SHS agreed to pay to the 
District sufficient funds to retire the existing revenue bonds. SHS also agreed to pay lease 
payments for the purpose of timely satisfying the new debt incurred by the District, which 
is required to fund the expansion.   
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

15 

NOTE 5: LEASE AGREEMENTS (Continued) 
 
In April 2005, the District obtained permanent financing and SHS began making monthly 
payments in the amount of $68,597.  With the refunding of the District’s bonds, SHS is no 
longer responsible for making monthly financing payments to the District. However, SHS 
annually remits to the District the amount of $10,000 as an operating lease payment. 
 
In November 2016, in conjunction with SHS’s financing of the hospital expansion project, 
the lease amendment was amended to extend the term of the agreement to September 30, 
2051. In addition, the amended agreement authorizes SHS to enter into a loan agreement to 
finance the hospital expansion project and no additional lease payments are due to the 
District. 
 
Mancos Clinic 
 
In May 2012 the District entered into a lease agreement to lease a portion of the Mancos 
clinic to Southwest Memorial Hospital. The lease requires monthly payments of $1,800 
through May 2015. The lease agreement also includes a risk sharing clause, where the 
District agrees to pay Southwest Memorial Hospital a maximum of $150,000 to cover 
operating losses during the first year of the lease and up to $75,000 during the second year 
of the lease. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the District did not make any 
payments to Southwest Memorial Hospital under the terms of this agreement.  Half of the 
clinic is rented on a month to month basis. 
 
In July 2018, the lease agreement was extended through August 1, 2023. The amended lease 
requires monthly lease payments of $1,800 and the risk sharing clause was eliminated. 

 
 
NOTE 6: RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The District participates 
in the Colorado Special District Property and Liability Insurance Pool to manage these risks 
of loss.  The Pool insures property, liability, workers’ compensation and associated 
exposures through contributions made by member districts.  The District does not 
maintain an equity interest in the insurance pool.  The District funds its pool contributions, 
outside insurance purchases, deductibles, and uninsured losses through the General Fund.  
Claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in the last three years. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

16 

NOTE 7: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Claims and Judgments 
 
The District receives funding from the state government for various projects.  These funds 
are subject to review and audit by the state government. Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. District 
management believes that such amounts, if any, will be immaterial. 
 
Tabor Amendment 
 
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, 
which has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other 
specific requirements of state and local government. The Amendment is complex and 
subject to judicial interpretation. Based upon the voters’ approval of the District’s 
exemption from the Tabor limitation and “any other law” including the 5.5% limitation. 
The District has been exempt from the requirements of the Tabor amendment including 
the 5.5% growth limitation since January 1, 2014. The District believes it is in compliance 
with the Amendment and does not report a restriction of fund balance in the General 
Fund. 
 
Hospital Expansion Project 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the District entered into various agreements 
and modified existing agreements with the District’s hospital operator, SHS. Below is a 
summary of the most significant agreements: 
 
SHS Loan Agreement 
 
In November 2016, SHS entered into a loan agreement in the amount of $40,000,000. The 
loan is funded by Montezuma County $39,558,000 Series 2016A and $442,000 2016B 
Revenue bonds. Proceeds will be used to provide funding for the hospital expansion. In 
addition, a portion of the proceeds are used to pay off the District’s existing bond debt. 
 
The bonds carry interest rates ranging from 4.72% to 5.9%. Debt service payments are 
payable by SHS through December 2046 for the Series 2016A bonds and through June 
2023 for the Series 2016B bonds.  The bonds and were purchased by a syndicate of six 
commercial banks to provide the funding to SHS.  
 
Project Funding Agreement 
 
On November 1, 2016, the District entered into a project funding agreement with SHS. 
Under the terms of the agreement, SHS agrees to finance, undertake, and complete the 
hospital expansion project. Funding for the project was obtained through the SHS loan 
agreement in the amount of $40,000,000, including a $2,000,000 grant from the Colorado 
Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2023 

 
 

17 

NOTE 7: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) 
 

All improvements constructed under the agreement are owned by the District, subject to 
the existing lease agreement between the two parties. In addition, the District has agreed to 
reimburse SHS for actual project costs in annual installments of $1,400,000 from 2022 
through 2030. The sales tax collected by the district was approved by voters in the 
November 2015 election specifically to fund the Districts Hospital expansion project. All 
of the sales tax revenue collected will be applied to the hospital expansion project in strict 
compliance with the 2015 ballot language. The sales tax revenue is applied to the project by 
District Board appropriation.  In May of 2023 the voters of the District approved to 
remove the sunset provision of the sales tax and decreased the mill levy by 25%. 
 
In conjunction with these agreements, the District also adopted a resolution to provide 
$800,000 in reserve funds to satisfy SHS’s loan reserve requirements. SHS has agreed that 
these funds are not to be used to satisfy current debt service requirements. The reserve 
funds are to be paid back to the District once SHS’s loan has been paid in full. The amount 
is reported as a deposit on the District’s balance sheet.  
 
 

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Potential subsequent events were considered through July 29, 2023.  It was determined that 
no events were required to be disclosed through this date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



MONTEZUMA COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Year Ended December 31, 2023

ORIGINAL VARIANCE
AND FINAL Positive 2022

BUDGET ACTUAL (Negative) ACTUAL
REVENUES
Local Sources

Property Taxes 458,000$       482,279$      24,279$        608,891$      
Specific Ownership Taxes 60,000           60,104          104               75,961          
Hospital Expansion Tax 1,600,000      2,160,544     560,544        2,152,570     
Intergovernmental -                7,500            7,500            140,934        
Investment Income 1,000             45,584          44,584          1,692            
Lease Revenue 40,000           38,930          (1,070)           41,560          
Other 5,000             12,046          7,046            2,767            

TOTAL REVENUES 2,164,000      2,806,987     642,987        3,024,375     

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government
Insurance 10,000           6,350            3,650            5,800            
Legal and Professional Fees 103,500         48,315          55,185          224,640        
Other Expenses 39,500           10,726          28,774          1,691            
Contributions -                -               -               1,079            
County Treasurer Fees 15,000           9,650            5,350            11,059          

Capital Outlay 2,900,000      2,435,454     464,546        3,925,495     
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,068,000      2,510,495     557,505        4,169,764     

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (904,000)        296,492        1,200,492     (1,145,389)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Capital Contributions -                21,000          21,000          91,826          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (904,000)        317,492        1,221,492     (1,053,563)    

FUND BALANCE, Beginning 3,119,646      3,007,259     (112,387)       4,060,822     

FUND BALANCE, Ending 2,215,646$    3,324,751$   1,109,105$   3,007,259$   

2023

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.

18

DRAFT


	8-14-24 MCHD Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	7-10-24 MCHD Regular Board Meetign Minutes
	07-17-24 Trainor Invoice
	Page 1

	SHS Report
	202407 CEO Board Report
	MCHD Finance Report
	Health Svcs Sales Tax
	2023 MCHD Financials (draft)



